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PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Franklin Corners is a small farming and milling hamlet whicJ

dates fro

m approximately 1770 to 1850.

This small village is located north of the tovm of Basking
Ridge, along the Passaic River at the intersection of Childs

Road and

The
and sold
sold the
and mille

Route 202.

land was originally purchased by William Penn in 1717
to John Budd in 1718. Budd's widow, Sarah Budd Scott,
land in the middle of the 18th century to the farmers
rs who settled the area prior to the Revolution. The

Brees, Johnson, Lewis and Southard families were among the

earliest

inhabitants. Of these only the Samuel Johnson House

still _stands,

Generally, most structures date from the 1st and 2nd quar-
ters of the 19th century when there were 2 mills, a school, a
general store, and several farms at Franklin Corners. All of
the commercial buildings still exist. Diaries and documents
indicate that during the 19th century this village was a bustling
agricultural community centered around two small one-family
industries --a dqrist mill and a saw mill.

Select buil

1

Ings are herein _described: -
Van Dorn's Mill (Carl Ferenbach), Route 202 and Childs
Road, 1842-43. Built on or near the site of an earliei
mill (1768). 3 1/2 story random fieldstone with cut
cornerstones. Outstanding example of mid-I9th century
stone masonry. Windows are 6/6 with trapazoidal key-
stones. Gambrel roof. Originally an undershot mill,
but converted to turbines late in the 19th century.

I At about the same time the mill stones were replaced
with rollers. Much of the 19th century mill machinery
remains. Exterior unaltered. Building is vacant and

beginning to deteriorate.

Ferdinand Van Dorn House (Lewis Robertson), Childs Roa<
2nd quarter 19th century. Greek Revival stvie 2 1/2
story . clapboard rectangular structure. Gambrel roof
with™intersecting triangular dormer. Paired gable end
rhimnevs  Five bays, center entrance. First 8 second,
nootr W|AdeW% are 9/6_sdash Witht ¢ th hich

or. . the fir oor windows . eas e or which are
{‘ull Wength_% gtone \fvoundat_lon. P—'ul‘i_ C_eoh)ar with a
halemInt”®kitchen. Small brick outbuilding and a moder;ji

garage on the property

Van Dorn House (J. A. Ziebarth), Childs Road, 19th
century, extensively altered. Conglomerate dwelling
with man¥ alterations and additions. Original unit
IHILTs to be rectangular 2 1/2 story clapboard struc-
ture with a _gable roof and gable end chimneys.
Probably originally 5 bay, center halls. Stone foun-
dation nearly every facade has been altered and added

on to.

«»

3

I<N

S50

o



Form 10-3000 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
(July 1969) NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY - NOMINATION FORM

(Continuation Sheet)

CiVumber ait entriea)

Franklin Corners Historic District
Bernards Township

Somerset

New Jersey 34

STATE

New Jersey

COUNTY

Somerset
FOR NPS USE ONLY

ENTRY NUMBER

JAY 1 2 1975

DATE

6. Representation in Existing Surveys (cont'd.)

Title of Survey:

New Jersey Historic Sites Inventory (#’s 237.6, 413.6, § 414.1)

State, 1962, 1964 5 1973

/= RECETVED

13 1975 ~

national

GP 0 921-7 24



<"pICIO-300a

y irfD STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR STATE
/ ACEIVED VI NATIONAL PARK SERVICE New Jersey
/1 NATI REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES  €°UNTY
N~ FEB 13 1975 INVENTORY + NOMINATION FORM Somerset
l\é(l NATIONAL 5 FOR NPS USE ONLY
-r it i ENTRY NUMBER DATE
~  RFRIRTFR M (Cexitinuation Sheet) MAY 12" 7675

s Historic District

SomeTset2County
New Jersey 34

7. Description (cont'd.)

5

11

Joab Johnson House/William Gordon's General Store
(Charles Allen), Childs and Hardscrabble Road, ca.
1805, 1850. Built by Joab Johnson. Two story clap-
board dwelling with 1 1/2 story wing on east gable
end. Main unit is 3 bay, side entrance. Windows are
6/6 sash with batten board shutters. Gable roof with
modern outside chimney. Smaller unit has 2 bays and
a gable roof with a modern dormer. Functions as
general store ca. 1832-1850. Modern double garage

INn basement.

Samuel Johnson House. (Harry Ottinger, Jr.), Childs
Road, ca. 1770. Oldest house in the district. Main
unit is a 1 1/2 story rectangular clapboard building.
Five bays with a center through hall. Windows are
6/6 sash with batten board shutters. Modern porch
over center three bays. Gable roof with two shed
dormers. Gable end chimneys. Smaller wing may be
of a later date. This small rectangular unit Is also
1 1/2 stories, clapboard, and a gable roof with a
center shed dormer. Gable end chimney. The front
facade of this unit is obstructed by a semi-enclosed
leanto porch. Modern garage attached.

Schoolhouse (Richard Sanford), Childs Road, 1832.
Single 2 story Greek Revival style clapboard building.
Twenty by forth foot brace frame. Three bay, side
entrance on the gable end. Windows are 6/6 sash.
Second floor windows on the gable end may have been
added in the 20th century when building was converted
into a private residence. Corner pilasters and a
simple entablature below the eave. Numerous additions
in the rear.

McMurtry Sawmill (Robert F. Lewis), Hardscrabble Road,
ca. 1827, 1850, altered. Two and 1/2 story vertical
board structure with land hewn timber frame. Stone
foundation. Vertical saw mounted over fireplace.
Between 1941 and 1962 this saw mill was converted into
a private residence and much of the 19th century
milling equipment as noted by-Historic American
Buildings Survey was removed during the remodeling.
Exterior changes include the removal of large double

GPO 921-724
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7. Description (cont'd.)

sliding doors, the addition of exterior chimneys and
modern window placements.

10 McMurtry House (John Nooney), Hardscrabble Road,
opposite sawmill, 18th century. 1 1/2 story clapboard
building, 5 bay, center hall. Windows are 9/6 sash
on first floor. Attic windows, on gable and are 6/6
Gable roof with three dormers and gable and chimneys.
Full length early 20th century porch on front facade
which disguises age. Stone foundation. Modern garage
at the eastern end of the property.

The Franklin Corners district is approximately 50 acres and
contains 10 private residence and the vacant grist mill. Of these
eleven structures two are 18th century, six are 19th century, and
three are modern encroachments. Two of these were apparently
constructed in the 1930’s using timbers of old nearby barns.

Much of the district, especially along Hardscrabble Road,
is undeveloped land covered with forest and dense undergrowth.

Furthermore, the district is adjacent to a nature study area
and that area abutts up against Jockey Hollow, which is part of
the Morristown National Historic Park.

The modern buildings are as follows:

U» Loysen House (Hilda Loysen), Hardscrabble and Childs Roads,

1930's. Built around the frame of an old bam. Two dwelling
units and an attached garage. Main unit is 2=g stories while
smaller section is |=g stories with eyebrow windows. Clapboard
with gable roof.

6 Wallace Childs House (R. Crun®)), Childs Road, Built in the
1930's in the colonial revrival style by the nephew of
millionaire restauranteur Wiliam Childs, Jr. Part of the
was originally the frame of an old bam. The property is the
site of another early 19th century bam built by Job Johnson.

8 House and Garage. (M. Gallagher), Hardscrabble Road, Early 20th

century. Frame builcjing with a small garage dependeixy. Said
to have been a 19th cent\iry schoolhouse, but there is no siirface
evidence of any 19th century characteristics.

GPO 921.724
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Franklin Corners represents a way of life in the first hali*
of the 19th century before New Jersey was heavily influenced by
the Industrial Era. This small, nearly self-sufficient village,

/> boasted of a saw mill, a grist mill, a general store, a school,

2: and several houses in the 19th century.

o Farmers surroundin% the area travelled to the village for
sawn timbers, to have their grain m.illed, and, perhaps to buy
the latest manufactured goods from the small general store. The
village, consequently, was a center of commerce for the Tovmship

u The area comprising Franklin Corners had been settled some
time prior to the American Revolution. The Frees, Johnson, Lewi

a: and Southard families were the first settlers. Of these first

I- families, however, only the Johnson House remains, as the others
ar were variously destroyed.

z Industry: ) )
The first mill, on or near the present Van Dorn Mill, was
us built in 1768 by Samuel Lewis. It was from this mill that the

Continental Army was provided with grain during the encampment
at nearby Jockey Hollow in the winter of 1779.

d) This mill was probably operated by Samuel Woodward and
owned by Richard Southard in the early 19th century.

Ferdina:nd Van Dorn bought the Southard place In 1842 and
proceeded to build the present mill. This new grist mill was
said to have been the finest flouring-mill in Somerset County
and from its size and appearance the statement was probably
not far from the truth. Van Dorn apparently designed the mill
himself and selected a location which would provide the most
efficient water power. The mill originally was fitted with
three runs of stone which were replaced in 1893 by roller-type
equipment. This modernization coupled with the installation of
3 turbines in the late 1880's laid the basis for a more producti
mill operation. The mill operated until 1941 and much of the
19th century mill equipment is still intact.

The saw mill, which was originally constructed in 1828 by
Samuel McMurtry and re-tooled around 1850 by his .son Abnah,
remained in the McMurtry famil?/ for nearly one hundred years.
Until a generation ago the mill, with its vertical "up.and down'
saw was nearly completely intact and an excellent- indication of
early 19th century sawing techniques. Presently a private home,
only the original form of the mill exists as an indication of

uJ
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8. Significance (cont'd.)
the structures former use.

Education:

Franklin Corners, small as it was, had citizens prosperous
enough in the 2nd quarter of the 19th century to build their own
school. This small school was private and required tuition from
parents in order that their children might attend. The school
was called Franklin Academy and functioned as an educational
facility until the early 20th century.

N.B. William Childs, life-long resident of Somerset County
and noted restauranteur, hoped to create what he termed
an historic town around the nucleus of Franklin Corners
in the 1930's. The preliminary plans actually called
for the construction of a housing development which
would encircle the village. Although a few buildings
were constructed, the project never completely
materialized as Childs died in 1938.

Consequently, Franklin Corners remains relatively
unobstructed by modern development and has maintained
a 19th century atmosphere up to the present day.

RECE3®
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2. Location (cont.)
Verbal Description

Beginning at the intersection of Route 202 (Mt.
Kemble Avenue) and Childs Road, proceed north on Route
202 to the Harding-Bernards Township border at the
Passaic River. Thence, proceed west along the main
branch of the river to the bend at Hardscrabble Road,
directly opposite Lakeside Slope Road (now closed).
Thence, proceed north approximately 300 feet along
the township boundary to the projected property line
of J. Nooney (#25) and C J Apgar (#24). Thence,
proceed west along the Nooney property 370', southwest
147', south-southwest 254' and east 295'. Thence,
proceed 476 feet south to Lakeside Slope. Thence,
proceed easterly parallel to Hardscrabble Road
(approximately 500 feet away) to the back property
line on the north side of Childs Road. Thence,
proceed southwest along the Ottinger property 215
feet. Thence, proceed southeast along Childs Road
to the property line dividing F. Sandford and D. Caurr.
Thence, proceed south 371 feet, east 136 feet, north
220 feet, east 137 feet, and north 152 feet to Childs
Road. Thence, proceed along Childs Road to the point
of beginning.

GPO 921.724



P L g bl Cosmeras Mbatnel Lttt
State %u/- % , Working Number 2. /4, 257 44% gom b! Q() .
- TECHNICA J CONTROL

Photos . an '
Maps o2 (} f/\ o7 oZﬁ, 7j
HISTORIAN

" . . . . Aece,t
0w&rwhalpeltt;é?;éA»mHM&Zijz:zZX. € &
| ARCHITECTURAL HISTORIAN

'@r(cem

Too WS Tws (S AW 0UTSTawIKWG FPey
BIRACT 2-28-75

- ARCHEOLOGIST

750059
|
|

|
|

N bl by pistficde as Mo fuiic: f A
S e ma/ﬂz; HIGS Auetpd - Inventory _Pr—e3
Review L

REVIEW UNIT CHIEF ’

"Gl

3.3.9%

BRANCH CHI?F

5€7s
KEEPE

\¢ *)0\\1/

National Register Write-up Send-back Entered M
Federal Register Entry | 7=/=17> Re-submit T 2100 7a

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service WASO No. 7




































DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

TRENTON 08625
OFFICK OF THE COMMISSIONER

December 12, 1974

Dr. William Murtagh

Keeper of the National Register
Department of the Interior
National Park Service

18th and C Streets, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20240

Dear Dr. Murtagh:

| am pleased to nominate the Franklin Corners
Historic District, Bernards Township, Somerset County
to the National Register.

This nomination has received approval of the
State Review Committee for Historic Sites.

Should you want any further information concernin
this application, please feel free to contact the staft
of the Historic Sites Section, Box 1420, Department of
Environmental Protection, Trenton, New Jersey 08625,
telephone (609) 292-2023.

Faithfully,
/-

David J./Bardin
Commissioner

Enclosures



ENTRIES IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER

STATE new jersey
Date Enteredl 2 19"

Nane Location

Franklin Corners Historic District Bernards Tovmship
Somerset County

Half Way House East Hanover
Morris County

Also Notified
Hon. Harrison A. Williams, Jr. State Historic Preservation Officer
Hon. Clifford P. Case Mr. David J. Bardin, Commissioner
Hon. Millicent Fenwick Department of Environmental Protection

Post Office Box 1420
Regional Director, Mid Atlantic Trenton, New Jersey 08625
Region

CAshton/cha 5-14-75



Haines Lividberg Waehler
Architects Erjgineers

“nd Planners

204Qiaremont Road
Bernardsville NJ 07924
Phone 201 221 0555

Partners

Frank J Waehler AIA
Michael Maas AIA
Martin D Raab AlA
Robert A Djerejian AIA
William E Baltz AIA
Gregory E Brooks PE
Arnold D Hackel PE
Lee R Kirk PE
George P Labra PE
BF Winckowski PE
Anthony J Flaherty
Comptroller

New York Office
2 Park Avenue
New York NY

Consultanfs

Benjamin Lane Smith
Charles Haines
Robert S Lundberg

January 4, 1980

Acting Keeper

The National Register

Heritage Conservation and Recreation Services
National Registry OfHce

18th and C Streets, N.W.

Washington, D. C. 20243

Dear Sir:

We are interested in the VVan Dorn Mill which is located
in the Franklin Corners Historic District, Somerset
County, New Jersey, and have been informed it is
included in the National Register. Because of our
possible acquisition of the property, we would appreciate
a statement confirming its entry in the National Register.
Your cooperation will be very much appreciated.

Very truly yours.

Robert L. Vignolo
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#5 (Location): N of Bernardsvllle on HardscrabMe and Childs Rds. and US 202



